2002

Kenneth Carl Larson v. Southern Nevada Memorial Hospital : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED

- I. Is the hospital's Notice of Claim, properly filed in the Nevada action, valid against the Utah personal representative pursuant to Utah Code Annotated §75-3-815?
- II. Is the hospital's claim, filed in Nevada, valid against the Utah personal representative under Utah Code Annotated §75-4-401?
- III. Was the filing of the hospital's claim in the Utah proceeding timely and proper in light of the particular and peculiar facts of this case?
- IV.
 - A. Was decedent's false statement regarding his residence and the personal representative's concealment the type of fraud contemplated in Utah Code Annotated §75-1-106, thus giving the hospital a three year time period to file its creditors claim?
 - B. Does Utah Code Annotated §78-12-38 have application to the exclusion of §75-3-803 in the particular and limited situations to which it relates?

Ultimate Issue: Did the lower court error in dismissing the hospital's petition for allowance of claim?

REPRINTED STATUTES

§75-1-102. PURPOSES -- RULE OF CONSTRUCTION.

- (1) This code shall be liberally construed and applied to promote its underlying purposes and policies.
- (2) The underlying purposes and policies of this code are:
 - (a) To simplify and clarify the law concerning the affairs of decedents, missing persons, protected persons, minors, and incapacitated persons;
 - (b) To discover and make effective the intent of a decedent in a distribution of his property;
 - (c) To promote a speedy and efficient system for administering the estate of the decedent and making distribution to his successors;

- (d) To facilitate use and enforcement of certain trusts; and
- (e) To make uniform the law among the various jurisdictions.

§75-1-106. EFFECT OF FRAUD AND EVASION.

Whenever fraud has been perpetrated in connection with any proceeding or in any statement filed under this code or if fraud is used to avoid or circumvent the provisions or purposes of this code, any person injured thereby may obtain appropriate relief against the perpetrator of the fraud or restitution from any person (other than a bona fide purchaser) benefitting from the fraud, whether innocent or not. Any proceeding must be commenced within three years after the discovery of the fraud, but no proceeding may be brought against one not a perpetrator of the fraud later than five years after the time of commission of the fraud. This section has no bearing on remedies relating to fraud practiced on a decedent during his lifetime which affects the succession of his estate.

§75-3-803. LIMITATIONS ON PRESENTATION OF CLAIMS.

(1) All claims against a decedent's estate which arose before the death of the decedent, including claims of the state and any subdivision of it, whether due or to become due, absolute or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, founded on contract, tort, or other legal basis, if not barred earlier by other statute of limitations, are barred against the estate, the personal representative, and the heirs and devisees of the decedent, unless presented as follows:

(a) Within three months after the date of the first publication of notice to creditors if notice is given in compliance with §75-3-801; provided, claims barred by the nonclaim statute at the decedent's domicile before the first publication for claims in this state are also barred in this state.

(b) Within three years after the decedent's death, if notice to creditors has not been published.

(2) All claims against a decedent's estate which arise at or after the death of the decedent, including claims of the state and any subdivision of it, whether due or to become due, absolute or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, founded on contract, tort, or other legal basis, are barred against the estate, the personal representative, and the heirs and devisees of the decedent, unless presented as follows:

(a) A claim based on a contract with the personal representative, within three months after performance by the personal representative is due;

(b) Any other claim, within three months after it arises.

(3) Nothing in this section affects or prevents:

(a) Any proceeding to enforce any mortgage, pledge, or other lien upon property of the estate; or

(b) To the limits of the insurance protection only, any proceeding to establish liability of the decedent or the personal representative for which he is protected by liability insurance.

§75-3-815. ADMINISTRATION IN MORE THAN ONE STATE -- DUTY OF PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE.

(1) All assets of estates being administered in this state are subject to all claims, allowances, and charges existing or established against the personal representative wherever appointed.

(2) If the estate either in this state or as a whole is insufficient to cover all family exemptions and allowances determined by the law of the decedent's domicile, prior charges and claims, after satisfaction of the exemptions, allowances and charges, each claimant whose claim has been allowed either in this state or elsewhere in administrations of which the personal representative is aware, is entitled to receive payment of an equal proportion of his claim. If a preference or security in regard to a claim is allowed in another jurisdiction but not in this state, the creditor so benefited is to receive dividends from local assets only upon the balance of his claim after deducting the amount of the benefit.

(3) In case the family exemptions and allowances, prior charges and claims of the entire estate exceed the total value of the portions of the estate being administered separately and this state is not the state of the decedent's last domicile, the claims allowed in this state shall be paid their proportion if local assets are adequate for the purpose, and the balance of local assets shall be transferred to the domiciliary personal representative. If local assets are not sufficient to pay all claims allowed in this state the amount to which they are entitled, local assets shall be marshalled so that each claim allowed in this state is paid its proportion as far as possible, after taking into account all dividends on claims allowed in this state from assets in other jurisdictions.

§75-4-401. EFFECT OF ADJUDICATION FOR OR AGAINST PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE.

An adjudication rendered in any jurisdiction in favor of or against any personal representative of the estate is as binding on the local personal representative as if he were a party to the adjudication.

§78-12-38. OUTSIDE THIS STATE.

If a person against whom a cause of action exists dies without the state, the time which elapses between his death and the expiration of one year after the issuing, within this state, of letters testamentary or letters of administration is not a part of the time limited for the commencement of an action therefor against his executor or administrator.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In this probate proceeding the appellant, Southern Nevada Memorial Hospital, hereafter hospital, filed a creditors claim against the estate. The hospital's claim is for medical and hospital expenses associated with the decedent's last illness. The hospital initially filed its claim in Nevada, in the probate commenced there immediately after the decedent's death. Record pp. 91-94. Subsequently, the hospital filed its claim in Utah. Record pp. 14-16. The claim was rejected by the Utah personal representative. The hospital filed its petition seeking allowance of the claim. Record pp. 17-18. The lower court denied the hospital's requested relief and this appeal was taken. Record pp. 110-113.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts are basically undisputed and are found in the lower court's Findings of Fact. A copy of the lower courts findings are in the addendum to this brief. The original is located in the record at pp. 110-112.

The decedent died at the hospital in Las Vegas, Nevada, on December 21, 1982. Upon the decedent's admission to the hospital on December 6, 1982, he listed his address as 4001 East Sahara Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, which is the address of Maycliff Mini Storage and RV Park. On January 4, 1983, Mr. Jared Shafer was appointed special administrator of the decedent's estate in Nevada by order of the Eighth Judicial Court, Clark County, Nevada. Vicky Larson Carroll, the decedent's daughter, then nominated Mr. Shafer to be the general administrator of her father's estate in Nevada. That nomination was signed by Vicky Carroll on January 5, 1983. These facts are evidenced in the certified copies of the Nevada proceeding, which is part of the record, pp. 44-97, particularly pp. 47-49 and

an estate wherever filed. It is the hospital's position that its claim, as filed in Nevada, is thus binding on the Utah personal representative. The argument also outlines the hospital's position that a creditor's claim is valid and binding even if filed with the court prior to any publication of notice to creditors.

Point III argues the applicability of §75-4-401 of the Utah Code to the facts of this case. This section provides that an adjudication in any jurisdiction is binding on the local personal representative. The hospital claims that the Nevada Court order, signed May 11, 1984, is such an adjudication. The Nevada Court found that the hospital's claim had been filed, but remained unpaid for lack of funds. The hospital thus argues that the Utah assets are subject to the claims recognized in Nevada.

Point IV is an equitable claim, seeking to avoid the bar provision of §75-3-803 under the peculiar facts of this case. The hospital claims (a) because the decedent misled them by listing his residence in Las Vegas, (b) because Vicky Carroll nominated the Nevada administrator and was subsequently appointed the Utah Personal Representative and (c) because Vicky Carroll did not give any notice to the hospital in Nevada of the Utah proceeding, she cannot use the nonclaim statute in Utah to avoid the hospital's claim. The hospital argues that the nonclaim statute, as a statute of limitations, is for the purpose of promoting justice by preventing prosecution of stale claims. This purpose would not be met by barring the hospital's claim in light of the facts present in this case.

Point V contains two separate arguments centered upon the interpretation of Utah Code Annotated §75-1-106 and §78-12-38.

The first statute allows claims by parties injured by fraud in connection with a probate proceeding if filed within three years of discovery

67-70. The hospital filed a creditors claim in the amount of \$24,832.54 with the Nevada Court on January 6, 1983. Record pp. 91-94.

The Utah probate was commenced on January 26, 1983, when Vicky Larson Carroll petitioned and was appointed personal representative of the estate. Record pp. 1-7. The publication of Notice to Creditors in Utah occurred in January and February, 1983, in Washington County in the Color Country Spectrum, the local newspaper. Record p. 9.

The hospital was unaware of the Utah proceeding until November, 1983. It then filed a creditors claim in Utah on November 14, 1983. Record pp. 14-16. Vicky Larson Carroll denied the claim and the hospital filed its petition for allowance of claim on June 8, 1984. Record pp. 17-18. The lower court dismissed the hospital's petition on motion of the personal representative.

The value of the Nevada estate was originally estimated as being \$60,000. Record p. 44. The Administrator in Nevada did not receive any assets. Record pp. 80-81. The Nevada Court discharged the Administrator after finding that he had received no assets. The court found the sole claim against the estate (filed by the hospital) was left unpaid for lack of funds. Record pp. 87-88.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Point I outlines the scope of review to be applied by the Supreme Court in deciding this appeal. Since the facts are undisputed, the Supreme Court is called upon to review the conclusions of law of the lower court. The appellate court is, of course, not bound by the lower court's conclusions.

Point II argues the applicability of §75-3-815 of the Utah Code to the facts of this case. The statute provides for the recognition of claims against

of the fraud. The hospital claims that the decedent's false listing of a Las Vegas address as his residence is such a fraud. Therefore the hospital's claim is timely under the three year limitation provided.

The second cited statute provides an extension of all statutes of limitation from the date of a decedent's death to a date one year beyond the issuance of letters testamentary, when the decedent against whom the claim existed died outside of this state. This statute is very specific and has application in only a limited number of situations. As a result, the statute has application in those situations to the exclusion of §75-3-803, which is a general statute of limitations in the probate area.

ARGUMENT

Point I SCOPE OF REVIEW.

The Supreme Court's scope of review in this appeal can be set out in two well established rules.

First, this Court has held that in determining the correctness of a judgment of dismissal, the Court must view the facts in the light most favorable to the appellant. Meyers v. McDonald, 635 P.2d 84 (Utah, 1981); Davis v. Payne and Day, Inc., 10 Utah 2d 53, 348 P.2d 337 (1960); Williams v. ZCMI, 6 Utah 2d 283, 312 P.2d 564 (1957). It is believed that most, if not all, of the facts in the instant matter are before the court as stipulated facts. Therefore, it is not necessary to review the validity of those facts. The review required will entail a determination of the conclusions of law drawn from those facts. Should the Court find any facts in dispute then those facts must be viewed in the light most favorable to the hospital.

It is well established law that where the issues to be determined solely involve questions of law, the Supreme Court is just as capable of

determining the question as was the trial court and thus the Supreme Court is not bound by the lower Court's conclusions. See Automotive Manufacturers Warehouse, Inc. v. Service Auto Parts, Inc., 596 P.2d 1033 (Utah 1979); Provo City Corporation v. Nielson Scott Co., 603 P.2d 803 (Utah 1979); Betenson v. Call Auto and Equipment Sales, Inc., 645 P.2d 648 (Utah 1982); Olwell v. Clark, 658 P.2d 585 (Utah 1982).

In this appeal, the Court is urged to review the lower courts conclusions of law in light of the established facts. The law will convince this Court that the lower court's ruling was in error and should be reversed.

**Point II UTAH CODE ANNOTATED §75-3-815 SUBJECTS
THE ESTATE IN UTAH TO THE CLAIM PROPERLY
FILED IN NEVADA.**

The purpose of the Uniform Probate Code was to simplify and clarify the law and to promote the speedy and efficient settlement of decedent's estates. The code was not intended to deny any just claims against a decedent. It provides the forum to simply and quickly handle and settle those matters. Utah Code Annotated §75-1-102 (1953, as amended); Am. Jur. 2d New Topic Service, Uniform Probate Code §3 (1974).

**A. THE NEVADA CLAIM IS VALID AGAINST THE UTAH
PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE**

§75-3-815 of Utah's probate code provides a multistate scope to the administration of estates:

Administration in more than one state--Duty of personal representative.--

(1) All assets of estates being administered in this state are subject to all claims, allowances, and charges existing or established against the personal representative wherever appointed.

(2) If the estate either in this state or as a whole is insufficient to cover all family exemptions and allowances determined by the law of the decedent's domicile, prior charges and claims, after satisfaction of the exemptions, allowances and charges, each claimant whose claim has been allowed either in this state or elsewhere in administrations of which the personal representative is aware, is entitled to receive payment of an equal proportion of his claim. If a preference or security in regard to a claim is allowed in another jurisdiction but not in this state, the creditor so benefited is to receive dividends from local assets only upon the balance of his claim after deducting the amount of the benefit.

(3) In case the family exemptions and allowances, prior charges and claims of the entire estate exceed the total value of the portions of the estate being administered separately and this state is not the state of the decedent's last domicile, the claims allowed in this state shall be paid their proportion if local assets are adequate for the purpose, and the balance of local assets shall be transferred to the domiciliary personal representative. If local assets are not sufficient to pay all claims allowed in this state the amount to which they are entitled, local assets shall be marshalled so that each claim allowed in this state is paid its proportion as far as possible, after taking into account all dividends on claims allowed in this state from assets in other jurisdictions.

The statute clearly contemplates applying all of a decedents assets to all the claims against him, wherever located.

It is an undisputed fact that Southern Nevada Memorial Hospital filed its creditors claim in the Eighth Judicial Court, State of Nevada, on the 6th day of January, 1983. See Findings of Fact #5, signed by Judge Burns, Record p. 111 and also Record pp. 91-94. The Nevada probate action was the first to be commenced. Approximately three weeks later the Utah proceedings were initiated. The Utah Personal Representative, Vicky Carroll, nominated Jared E. Shafer, to act in her place and stead as the Administrator of her fathers estate in Nevada. A certified copy of this nomination is found in the Record at p. 47. A copy has been included in the addendum to this brief. Mr. Shafer was initially appointed as the "Special Administrator" and, pursuant to Vicky Carroll's nomination, was subsequently appointed as the general administrator in the Nevada

proceedings. The order appointing Mr. Shafer as the general administrator was signed by the Nevada Court on February 18, 1983 and amended on February 22, 1983. A certified copy of each order appears in the Record at pp. 67-70.

The Editorial Board Comment to §75-3-815 summarizes the purpose and requirements of the statute:

... This section has the effect of subjecting all assets of the decedent, wherever they may be located and administered, to claims properly presented in any local administration. It is necessary, however, that the personal representative of any portion of the estate be aware of other administrations in order for him to become responsible for claims and charges established against other administrations.

As indicated in the statute and comment, the local personal representative must be aware of other state administrations in order for him to become responsible for the claims filed in those administrations. Vicky Carroll was well aware of the Nevada action, even before she commenced the Utah action, as shown by her appearance in the Nevada action and her nominating the administrator of the Nevada probate.

B. THE NEVADA CLAIM WAS TIMELY FILED

The claim of Southern Nevada Memorial Hospital was filed timely and should have been allowed against the Utah assets.

The probate code nonclaim provisions (Utah Code Annotated §75-3-803 (1953, as amended)) become applicable only if the statutory time limitation has run locally prior to the creditors claim being filed in the foreign jurisdiction. See Am. Jur. New Topic Service Uniform Probate Code §108 (1974). The time limitation had not run in Utah prior to the claim being filed in Nevada. In fact, the Nevada claim was filed with the court before the Utah action was even commenced and before the Utah Notice to Creditors was first published.

At the trial court Vicky Carroll argued that creditor's claims must be filed after the notice to creditors is first published. Vicky Carroll also argued that if there was no publication in Nevada, there could not be any proper creditor claims there. See the Record at pp. 102-104, which is a portion of the estates Responsive Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss. Such an argument is not supported in the law, nor should it be allowed to stand as a conclusion of law. See the lower Court's Conclusion of Law #3. Record pp. 110-111.

The hospital's claim was filed with the Nevada court in a timely fashion. In the event the special administrator did not have authority to act upon the claim, the claim was still filed timely and should not be barred by Utah's nonclaim statute. A general administrator was appointed in the Nevada action and would apparently have had authority to reject creditors claims. No rejection of the hospital's claim was ever filed by the general administrator in Nevada. A failure to reject a claim within 60 days has the effect of allowance. See Utah Code Annotated §75-3-806(1). The hospital's claim was acknowledged in the Order Settling Final Account of Special Administrator. A certified copy of this order is located at pp. 87-88 of the Record. A copy of the order is also reproduced in the addendum to this brief. The court's order indicates that the hospitals claim was filed, but remained unpaid because of lack of assets to pay the bill. The language of the order seems to indicate a valid obligation of the estate and nonpayment of the claim was for lack of funds, not because the claim was improperly filed or rejected.

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