2002

Kenneth Carl Larson v. Southern Nevada Memorial Hospital : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The Hospital's Petition for Allowance of Claim was submitted to the District Court for ruling on the basis of stipulated facts. As such it is an agreed case, and the denial of the petition by the trial court is not properly designated as a "dismissal" implying a truncated evidentiary process which would now require reviewing the facts in a light most favorable to Appellant. Since the stipulation of the parties substitutes for trial, this Court should defer the factual findings of the trial court and confine its view of the evidence to those findings. Indeed, Appellant tactically agreed that the matter be submitted on this basis.

2. Utah Code Annotated 75-3-104 prohibits filing claims against the decedent before the appointment of a personal representative. This Court should support the expressed policies and intentions of the framers of the Uniform Probate Code and encourage orderly and uniform estate administration by requiring, consistent with §75-3-104, that creditors submit their claims to properly appointed personal representatives. This Court should hold, with other authorities, that a claim filed prior to the appointment of a personal representative is void.

3. For similar policy reasons as those expressed the above paragraph 2, this Court should hold that creditor's claims filed prior to publication of Notice to Creditors are void.

4. The Trial Court found no evidence of fraud which would trigger the operation of § 75-1-106 Utah Code Annotated. Appellant was aware of the status of decedent's residence in Nevada shortly before his death even though it may not have been aware of the actual address of his residence in the State of Utah prior to his death. Decedent made no representations regarding the state of his domicile or other states in which he may of had assets. Further, there is no evidence of concealment of assets or of the other administrations of the estate by the Personal Representative. The Hospital with due diligence could have discovered the other administrations and properly filed its claim.

5. The special administrator of the Nevada administration in his accounting and the Order Approving the Accounting both recite as a finding of fact that the Hospital's claim had been filed against the estate, but had not been paid. This finding of fact is not an "adjudication" of the creditor's claim as contemplated in Utah Code Annotated 75-4-401. Therefore, there is no adjudication of the creditor's claim in Nevada which would be binding on the Utah Personal Representative.

6. There are no particular facts or other hardships in this case which would warrant the creation of an exception to the nonclaim statute. The judicial creation of exceptions to statutory schemes should be reserved for extraordinary cases where the need for relief from severe hardship is compelling. This is not an appropriate case for the creation of a judicial exception.

7. The statutory scheme of the Uniform Probate Code contemplates the continued operation of various statutes of limitations including Utah Code Annotated 78-12-38.

However, the Uniform Probate Code provides that the first limitation provision to accomplish a bar on the particular facts of each case will control. In this case §75-3-803(a) accomplished a bar prior to §78-12-38 and therefore controls.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THIS COURT SHOULD DEFER TO THE FINDINGS
OF FACT ENTERED BY THE TRIAL COURT WITHOUT
SPECIAL INFERENCES IN FAVOR OF THE PETITIONER.

On June 14, 1984 approximately one and one-half years after the first publication of Notice to Creditors, Appellant filed its "Petition for Allowance of Claim and Order Allowing Claim". (R 17). The Personal Representative of the Estate responded by filing her "Objection to Order Allowing Claims" (R 23) and moved to dismiss the Petition. (R 29-32). The Parties each submitted memoranda which included statements of fact and argument. (R 30-32; 35-42; 98-107).

On September 10, 1984 the District Court called up the Petition for Allowance of Claim and the motion to deny the same. Each party was represented by counsel and each was heard. The parties stipulated that there were no issues of fact and further stipulated that the court should rule on the basis the stipulated facts which are found in the Trial Court's findings of fact (R 110-112) to which there has been no objection. (R 108). The Court thereafter ruled denying the Petition for Allowance of Claim. (UCA 75-3-806[2]).

On appeal, Appellant now argues that this Court "must view the facts in the light most favorable to the Appellant". (Appellant's Brief [hereinafter AB] at 7.) The Personal Representative believes that based on the parties'

stipulation below this is an inappropriate standard of review. Indeed, Respondent urges that the District Court's rulings based on facts commonly stipulated by both parties are entitled to the same deference as if they had been entered after trial.

There can be no question that where a trial court has dismissed a cause of action by entering a verdict or judgment of nonsuit or no cause of action, or where a case has been dismissed at the close of the Plaintiff's evidence or on a motion for directed verdict, this Court will review the facts in the light most favorable to the Plaintiff's contentions. Anderson v. Parson Red E-Mix Paving Company, 467 P.2d 45, 24 Utah 2d 128 (1970); Reliable Furniture Company v. American Home Insurance Company, 466 P.2d 368, 24 Utah 2d 93 (1970); Newton v. State Road Commission, 462 P.2d 565, 23 Utah 2d 350 (1970); Wilkinson v. Stevens, 403 P.2d 31, 16 Utah 2d 424 (1965). Appellant's Petition for Allowance of Claim in the instant case, however, was not denied under any of those circumstances which would warrant an appellate review of the evidence in a light most favorable to Appellant. Simply stated, the policy that evidence should be viewed in a light most favorable to Appellant is applicable only in cases where the facts are disputed and the trier of fact has not had full opportunity to hear and weigh all of the facts and evidence. Such a rule is applied only where the evidentiary or fact finding process has been abbreviated. In the instant case the parties stipulated to the facts. No additional evidence or testimony was contemplated or tactically proffered. (See AB at 7)

Indeed, the parties' stipulation regarding the facts substituted for the evidentiary portion of the hearing, and authorized the trial court to rule and draw legitimate inferences therefrom without being required to view the evidence in a light favorable to either party. (See Generally 73 Am Jur 2d "Stipulations" § 18). The Trial Court subsequently denied Appellant's Petition. The fact that the trial court's order is labeled as a "dismissal", however, cannot substantively transform the Court's action into something akin to a Rule 41 dismissal.

Pursuant to the Stipulation of the parties the trial court entered findings of fact. (R 110-112). Appellant does not challenge these findings. The Personal Representative believes that since the Petition for Allowance of Claim was submitted to the Court on the stipulation of the parties, said stipulation amounts to the equivalent of a trial thereon, and this Court should defer to the District Court's position with regard to the facts, and no inference or preference should be granted to the Appellant's contentions. Provo City Corporation v. Nielson Scott Company Inc., 603 P.2d 803 (Utah 1979); Polk v. Koerner, 111 Ariz. 493, 533 P.2d 660 (1975).

Appellant's brief now contains various new allegations of fact not found in the Trial Court's findings. These allegations relate primarily to the decedent's residence or domicile, allegations of fraud, false statements, concealment, the Appellant's lack of knowledge of the Utah proceedings and its alleged reliance on various of the decedent's representations.

(AB at 5, 15, 18, 19.) Respondent respectfully submits that as these allegations are not found in the Trial Court's Findings and did not form part of the stipulated case as submitted to the trial court by Appellant, that they should not be considered now by this Court. Indeed this Court should judicially limit its review to those facts contained in the Trial Court's Findings as submitted to that court by earlier stipulation. (R 110-112.) Because Appellant's brief contains various allegations beyond the Trial Court's Findings of Fact, however, Respondent's brief will reply to the Appellant's allegations by reference to additional citations in the record also not found in the findings.

POINT II

THE HOSPITAL'S CLAIM FILED IN NEVADA
PRIOR TO THE APPOINTMENT OF A PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE IS INVALID PURSUANT TO
UTAH CODE ANNOTATED § 75-3-104.

Vickie Carroll filed her nomination of Mr. Jared Shafer to act as "Special Administrator" with limited authority to collect and maintain the assets of the estate. (R 48-55.) This special administrator, similar to the law in Utah, was given no power to act on creditor's claims or to initiate publication to notice of creditors but rather was limited to the specific powers granted him by order of the Nevada Court. (See, e.g., UCA 75-3-617.) The claim of Southern Nevada Memorial Hospital was filed in Nevada on January 6, 1983. (R 111.)

The petition to appoint an administrator in Nevada was filed January 10, 1983. (R 46.) Prior to entry of an order appointing a general administrator in Nevada, an administration of the estate was opened in the state of Montana on January 18, 1983. (R 111; cf. R 67-68.) Mrs. Vonda Jean Biesen appeared in both forums challenging the appointment of administrators and claiming to be a surviving spouse. Vickie Carroll was never appointed personal representative in the State of Nevada. She was appointed personal representative in the administration of the estate in the State of Utah, however, on the 26th day of January, 1983. (R 111.) No general administrator with power to act on creditors claims was appointed in the State of Nevada until February 18, 1983, some 12 days after first publication of notice to creditors by the Utah Personal Representative. (R 67.) In short no personal representative or other person authorized to act on creditors claims had been appointed in any state at the time that Appellant filed its claim in the State of Nevada.

Utah Code Annotated 75-3-104 states:

"No proceeding to enforce a claim against the estate of a decedent or his successors may be revived or commenced before the appointment of a personal representative. After the appointment and until distribution, all proceedings and actions to enforce a claim against the estate are governed by the procedure prescribed by this Chapter 3. After distribution a Creditor whose claim has not been barred may recover from the distributees as provided in Section 25-3-1004 or from a former personal representative individually liable as provided in section 75-3-1005. This Section has no application to a proceeding by a secured creditor of the decedent to enforce his right

to his security except as to any deficiency judgment which might be sought therein." (Emphasis added).

The Editorial Board Comment to § 75-3-104 states as follows:

"This and sections of part 8 of chapter 3, are designed to force creditors of decedents to assert their claims against duly appointed personal representatives. Creditors of the decedent are interested persons who may seek the appointment of a personal representative (Section 75-3-301). If no appointment is granted to another within 45 days after the decedent's death, the Creditor may be eligible to be appointed if other persons with priority decline to serve or are ineligible (Section 75-3-203). But, if a personal representative has been appointed and has closed the estate under circumstances which leave a creditor's claim unbarred, the creditor is premitted to enforce his claims against distributees as well as against the personal representative if any duty owed to creditors under Section 75-3-807 or 75-3-1003 has been breached. The methods for closing estates are outlined in Section 75-3-1001 - 75-3-1003. Termination of appointment are Sections 75-3-608 et. seq. may occur though the estate is not closed and so may be irrelevant to the question to whether creditors may pursue distributees."

It is clear that the intent and policy of the framers of the Utah Probate Code is to compel creditors to assert claims against duly appointed personal representatives. In order to protect creditors from undue delay in the appointment of a personal representative, creditors are given the option, forty-five days after the death of the decedent to seek appointment themselves if others have declined to serve. § 75-3-201 U.C.A. In the instant case Appellant did not seek to enforce its claim against the duly appointed representative but rather it sought to enforce its claim against the special administrator

who had no power to deal with the claim. The Editorial Board Comments to § 75-3-104 state that Chapter 3 of the code, including part 8 on creditors claims, is applicable only after the appointment of a personal representative. Thus a creditor may not properly present a claim pursuant to Section 75-3-804 until the personal representative has been appointed.

In Price v. Sommermeyer, 577 P.2d 752 (Colo. 1978), the Colorado Supreme Court similarly held that pursuant to §15-12-104 of the Colorado Revised Statutes a claim was not valid unless a personal representative had been previously appointed. The Colorado Code Section interpreted in Price is identical to Utah Code Annotated §75-3-104.

Since in the instant case no personal representative had been appointed when Appellant filed its claim, the claim cannot be said to have been properly presented pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 of the Utah Probate Code. As such it is not binding upon the personal representative of the estate.

POINT III

THE CLAIM OF SOUTHERN NEVADA HOSPITAL IS INVALID
HAVING BEEN PREMATURELY FILED PRIOR TO PUBLICATION
OF NOTICE TO CREDITORS.

No notice to creditors was published in the administration of the Estate in Nevada as contemplated by UCA §75-3-803. (R 111.) Notice to Creditors was first published in Utah on January 30, and February 6, 1983. (R 9, 111.)

An Editorial Board Comment to UCA 75-3-815 which also explains the provisions of UCA 75-3-803 states:

Under 75-3-803(1)(a), if a local (property only) administration is commenced and proceeds to advertisement for claims before nonclaim statutes have run at domicile, claimants may prove claims in the local administration at any time before the local nonclaim expires. This section has the effect of subjecting all assets of the decedent, wherever they may be located and administered, to claims properly presented in any local administration. It is necessary, however, that the personal representative of any portion of the estate be aware of other administrations in order for him to become responsible for claims and charges established against other administrations." (Emphasis added)

From the above it is clear that the personal representative of an estate in the domicile cannot be bound merely by the filing of the claim in another state. Thus, unless the claim is properly established after Advertisement for claims or publication of notice in the second forum prior to expiration of the nonclaim period in the domicile, it has no validity in the domicile. And, since there had been no publication in the State of Nevada or any state when Appellant filed its claim in Nevada, said claim could not constitute an established claim.

In its brief Appellant cites three cases which appear to support the proposition that a creditor's claim may be filed prior to the publication of notice to creditors. A careful review of these cases, however, raises substantial questions about the validity of this proposition. Appellant's main theory posits its theory relying on Re Estate of Tanner, 288 So. 2d

587, 70 A.L.R. 3d 778 (Fla. App. 1974). In Tanner, a curator had published notice to creditors absent court authorization. A certain creditor responded by filing a claim. Thereafter, and within the time provided by Florida Statute, the estate filed an objection to the claim. The creditor, however, failed to timely file suit after the rejection of its claim by the estate and the trial court held that the statute of limitations barred the action. On these facts the trial court certified, inter alia, the following question on appeal.

"4. [where] a curator, appointed on February 18, 1971, and to whom letters of Curatorship were issued on February 26, 1971, published notice to creditors without order of court authorizing him to do so, the first publication of which notice was made on March 6, 1971, and claimant filed claim on August 29, 1971, and heirs at law of decedent and their Attorney filed objection to such claim on October 12, 1981, and duly served such objection on the claimant, is claimant barred, by failure to file suit, to establish claim within the time limited by FS Section 33.18, FSA?" (70 A.L.R. 3d 780.)

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